
COMPTROLLER GENERAL OF THE UNITED STATES 
W A S H I N G T O N , D.C. iza84S 

B-165868 
JUN 3 0 1971 

Dear Mr. Murphy: 

Further referfflace is made to your request of Deceanber 1, 1970, 
for additional infonaation concerning the possible exchange of 
Miller Field, Sbaten Island, New York, for the Wlllard Hotel, Wash­
ington, D. C.J by the General Seixrvlees Administration, which was 
the subject of ovir letters to you of July 21 and September 29, 1970. 

You request our report on all aspects of plans for disposal of 
Miller Field.. In particiilar, you question (KSA*a ral.iaoce on "vinusiial 
clrcuDStaoces" as J^l8tifylng negotiation of the exchange and by-
paaslng the screening of other Federal agencies for possible Interest 
In use of the prq^erty. In this connectlcm, you state your under­
standing that \ t o i l e QSk is considering the request of the Depart­
ment of Health, Bducetion ajod Welfare for 25 acraa to turn over to 
the City of New York for a high school, it is not granting the 
same consideration to the Post Office Departmeat's request for 10 
ercres for a new P:>9t Office. You also state your understanding 
that other Federal agexicles have expressed interest in the prorperty. 
In this regard, you sjsk to be advised whether there are priorities 
among the Federal agencies established by law and what discretion 
GSA has in the matter. Finally, you veoit to know if there i£ any 
la;w under which the local cosmunity would be entitled to eatpress its 
needs and desires through hearings and consultations or to stop the 
proposed exchange. 

Ve previously- advised you that under section 203(a) of the 
Pederea Property and Administrative Services Act of 19^9 (the Act), 
as €aaended, 1+0 U.S.C. '+81».(a), the Administrator of GSA la granted 
sv^ervlaion and direction over disposition of surplus jwoperty. 
Section 203(c) of the Act, 4̂0 U.S.C. l48U(c)i provides authority to 
dispose of sujpplus property by saile, exchange, lease, permit or 
traasfer, for cash, credit, or other property, and upon such terms 
and conditions as the Administrator deems proper. Disposals and 
contracts for disposal of surplus real property may be negotiated 
purauant to section 203(e)(3)(G) of the Act, kO U.S.C. U8U(e)(3)' 
(g)» if the character or condition of the property or unusual 
circuastences make It iffiptractlcal to advertise publicly for 
-icoB^petltlve-btdfi-and-the-falr-HPa:ritet—value-of the property and other_ 
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satisfactory terms can be obtained by negotiation. In this regard we 
advised you of our opinion that since the iiroposed exchange involved 
the acquisition of specific property to satisfy an agency need, the 
transaction did not lend Itself to the kind of objective and precise 
evaluation contemplated by formal advertising and* therefore, con­
stituted "unusual circumstances" Justifying negotiation. Further, 
we advised you of our opinion that the C&A regulatlbna and the Office 
of Management and Budget (formerly Bureau of the Budget) guidelines 
are adequate to assure obtaining the fair market value of the property 
being exchanged. 

QSA has on several occasions advised our Office that Its final 
plan for disposal of Miller Field will include consideration of local 
uses such as education and recreation, as well as a hospital and 
streets and boulevards. Furthermore, we have been advised that on 
numerous occasions since June l6| 1970, GSA has consulted with appro­
priate officials of the City of Hew York to iniaure that the disposal 
plan will be consistent with local needs and desire^ as contemplated 
under the Federal Urban Land-Use Act, Uo U.S.C. 531» et seg. Although 
we 9T9 not aware of any law vdileh requires (USA to conduct hearings 
prior to disposal, section 803 of the Act, 40 U.S.C. 532, provides 
that the Administrator shall prior to disposal give reasonable notice 
to the head of the governing body of the local govertxnent \mlt having 
Juriadlctlon over zoning and land-use regulation in order to afford the 
QovemBent the opportunity of zoning for the use of the land in accord­
ance with local eoxq̂ rehensive planniiig. In addition, an explanatory 
statement of the clrcmstances of any disposal plan will be filed with 
the appropriate Cosnittees of the Congress prior to consuiSBation of an 
exchange M required by section 203(e)(6) of the Act, UO U.S.C. 
U8MeK6). 

The authority of the Administrator of Qeneral Services to sell or 
ex(̂ iange Federal property to private parties ia applicable only to 
aurpluA propevty. See section 203(a) and (c) of the Act, UO U.S.C. 
l»8U(a) and (o). tbe term "euirplua property" is defined in section 3(g) 
of the Act, 1(0 U.S.C. i»72<g>, as follows: 

'*The texB 'surplus property* means any excess 
property not required for the needs and the dlsdurge 
of the respohsibllitles of all Federal agencies« aa 
detendLned by the Administrator," 

The DepartaBent of the Army has properly declared Miller Field to 
l>e "exoesB pzoperty** aa that term is defined in section 3(e) of the Act, 
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UO U.S.C. 1*72(e). Miller Field does not become surplus property avail­
able for sale or exchanse to prtvAte parties, however, until the Ad­
ministrator deteiwlnee that sucii property la "not required for the needs 
and the dloeharge of the resipbnslbllttiea of all Federal agencies." In 
a letter of February 5» 1971, froe the Acting Adialnistrator to us it is 
stated: 

Wo have not bypassed screening of Miller Field with 
other Federal agencies, Rather, we have detertHned that 
the pbaaibie exchange of a portion of MlHer Field for 
tbe tfliUrt Hotel, to satisfy the needs of the Depart^ 
»nt of the Interior, Is the parauMfimt use for the -
NlUer Field property. This Use ha« been given precedence 
over any other Pederal utiiiaatlon of the property which 
could be developed. 

"If the exchange does not materialize > we would then aa-
eertedn If there Are other Federal reg.ulrettenta for 
Miller Field by the screening of F^eral agencies. We 
are aware of possible interest of the Post Office Depart­
ment In a portion of Miller Field for a aev consolidated 
postal facility and the Department of Agrleultxire as a 
site for an animal quarantine station. Hoirever, since a 
•ubston'ttal portion of the property will be utilized to 
satisfy a Federal progaraa and other portions for in-
eilentol developasnt uses, if our exchange proposal la 
impleawnted, ve ocmalder it to be vltiiin our authority 
and discretion tO devise a ccâ arebenBlye jjiiaa Of dis­
posal that involves Federal and non-Federal uses." 

The legislatiYe history of the Federal Property and Adtednl strati ve 
Services Act of 19J+9 indicates that Incident to making hie determina­
tion that property is surplus the Administrator Of Oenerol Services is 
to sujrvsy the needs of Federal agexicles* The tena "survey" is a flex­
ible one. In our opinion the Adminlatrator Isaot obllj^ted to *'8\irvey" 
tbe property needs of Federal agencies in any jslven ease by following 
apeelfleoUy detailed procedures. Rather, he may execute his survey c» 
tbe basis of a broad analysla from on overall Vievpolnt making use of 
his general and specific knowledge of the situation in his role as the 
manager of the Govemmeiit*6 property. 
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Here the Administrator had InfoitBation as to the stated needs of 
the Ibst Office beportmeat and the Department of Agriculture for por­
tions of Killer Field, Ha is not bound to satisfy those needs if he 
determines that to do so would constitute an injudicious use of the 
property toyblved. At the same time be had a specific request from 
the Department of tbe Interior that be obtain for its use the WlUard 
Hotel property. Wltb those interests and needs in mind, as v e U as 
certain local government needs relaUng to tbe Miller Field property, 
the Administrator made a deteimlnetlon as to nhat be considered a 
parsBKXUit use of the Miller Field property. Inherent in his determina-
tlcm it would seem was his finding that the Miller Field property was 
"surplua**—that it could not be utilized prudently to satisfy taie needs 
of any Federal agency under the circumstances. 

In view of the discretionary authority In the Administrator to 
declare property a* "suiplus," the legality of his determination in 
ttot regard eould not be questioned by bur Office tinless such determlna-
tioo w*8 clearly arbit3fary or coprleloua. Even then the only action we 
could take would be to report the matter to th* Cohgresa, or perhaps to 
tto Attorney General for any possible legal proceeding to recover the 
property. 

On the record before us, we find no reasonable basis for holding 
ttot the Administrator's actiona concerning tto Miller Flald property 
were arbitrary or capricious. 

Sincerely yours, , 

(SIGNED) ELMER B, STAATS. 

Comptroller Cronerol 
of the United States 

Sis Honorable John M. itaxtiiy 
House of Bepreoentatives 
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